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Chairman’s and Chief executive'’s letter to share owners

Dear Share owner
The year in brief

Notwithstanding the cngoing chalienges being faced by the airfine sector, and a significant bad debt taken during the first half, the year 2004 has
been another period of growth for Watermark with revenues, normalised profits and earnings per share, again reaching all-time highs.

As well s organic growth from the core products division, and a claw back in margins during the second half of the year, the acquisitions that we
made in 2003 have all continued to increase sales and pre-tax profits during the year, whilst strengthening the foundations for the future growth
of your company.

Financial highlights

Comparing consolidated operations in 2004 with 2003:

Turnover Up 88% to £77.6m (£41.2m)
Gross profit margin % Up 22% to 33.0% (27.0%)
Operating profit Up 50% to £5.1m (£3.4m)
EBITDA Up 43% to £6.3m (£4.4m)
Normalised EBITDA* Up 95% to £8.0m (£4.1m)
Normalised profit {pre-tax)* Up 94% to £7.0m (£3.6m)
Normalised EPS (diluted)* Up 18% to 12.74p (10.79p)
Dividend per share Up 10% to 1.96p (1.78p)
Share owners' funds Up 141% to £37.6m (£15.6m)

*Normalised FBITDA, profit (pre-tax) and EPS (diluted) exclude amortisation of goodwill and exceptional costs, and arc presented as the
underlying measure of profitability.

Dividend policy
The board is recommending a |0% increase in the annual dividend from | 78p per sharc to |.96p.
General

Traffic recovery in 2004 at 15.3% exceedaed the original IATA (International Air Transport Association) forecast of 77%-8%, which compared with
a reduction of 2.4% in 2003 against the provious year: The number of airlines and travel clients with whormn the group trades alse continued to
grow.

Re-organisation

Following the acquisition of Alr Fayre, the group has undergone a fundamental re-organisation, both in terms of the nature and focus of its
operations, to provide savings to its clients through its enhanced products and services range. Since the acquisition was completed the group has
relocated its catering and newspaper and magazine distribution services operations to the new group headquarters at Heathrow. Space has been
reserved for further expansion of services within this dedicated location. Since the year end, head office finance and administration has been
repositioned to Heathrow. These fundamental re-arganisation costs are reflacted in the exceptional costs disclosed separately on the face of the
profit and less account. Also during this re-organisation period, we took advantage of integration efficiencies to complete the absorption of a
number of complementary businesses, acquired over the last three years. to restructure our non-catering services for the {uture and manage
themn on a unificd basis. This has alfowed us to enter 2005 with a substantially reduced central cost base. As part of this process, the group has
invested in now operaticnal and accounting [T systems, incurring both external and incremental internal costs.

The business now operates in two main divisions, namely products and services (including catering).
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Chairman’s and Chief executive’s letter to share owners {continued)

Products division

The positive trends in passenger numbers have enabled the preducts division to see organic growth in sales, as well as a partial reversal of the
margin erosion experienced in the first half as a result of the increase in raw materials associated with the rise in the price of oil.

Services division
Air Fayre's successful transition to our new 140,000 sq, ft. facility at Heathrow, and the commencement in September of a 6-year contract with
Air Canada (coupled with fees paid for consultancy) has meant that Air Fayre, in its first full year within the group, has made a substantial

contribution 1o overall group profits. M'n'H Recycling and Media on the Move have both seen meaningful growth during the course of the
year.

Investments
AeroTV Limited
AeroTV, an onboard entertainment company in which Watermark holds a 16% stake (and receives a commission of |0% of all sales revenue),
completed a successful 3-month trial with National Express. Subsequent to the year-end, it has been agreed to extend this service across the

MNational Express fleet, with an immediate roll-out on 100 coaches. This 3-year conitract, valued at £7.2 million, now forms the bedrock for
AercTV's future expansion,

Aerobox plc

A favourable settlement with Aerobox, the AlM listed manufacturer of comgosite cargo containers, resulted in Watermark being issued with 7.5%
of Aerobox's share capital, as well as receiving a payment for marketing services. This equity stake was sold during 2004, realising a net gain of
£0.7m after taking into account associated costs which include an appropriate charge for the involverment of seme of the directors in resolving
this.

FlightStore Group plc

FlightStore, an AlM listed new media company in which the group holds a 7.7% stake, has seen its market capitalisation reduce during the year
1o approximately £2 million, necessitating the balance sheet valuation of our investment being adjusted accordingly.

Personnel

Once again, we offer our sincere thanks to all the staff across the group, who have shown tremendous dedication and loyalty in & year in which
the airline industry has again been subjected to difficuit market forces.

Outlook

The chailenge for the industry now is to turn traffic growth into profitability. Airlines entered 2005 with a renewed determination to improve
efficiency, and increasingly look at the benefits of outsourcing as 2 means of reducing operational cost structures.

The value of new contract wins during the first part of 2005 has been encouraging, and our relocated and refocused operations at Heathrow
allows group companies and our Encompass |V partners to operate from a single location.

John A-G-Calthorpe John Caulcutt
Chairman Chief executive
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Financial Review

Summary of consolidated financial performance

2004 2003 Change
£'000 £'000 %
Sales revenues 77,581 41,215 832
Gross profit 25619 FLALT7 130.4
Gross margin (%) 33.0% 27.0% 222
Operating profit 5,125 3,367 52.2
EBITDA 6,331 4,379 44.6
Normalised EBITDA* 7,984 4,146 926
Net profit before taxation 3,835 3,324 154
Normalised net profit before taxadon® 7.029 3614 94.5
Normalised net profit margin before tuxation (%)* 9.1% 8.8% 34
Normalised earnings per share
-Basic 13.15p 11.2Cp 17.4
-Diluted 12.74p 10.79p 18.1
Standard earnings per share
- Basic 5.78p 973p (40.6)
- Diluted 5.60p 9.37p (40.2)

*Normalised EBITDA, normalised net profit before taxation, normalised net profit margin and normalised earnings per share exclude
amortisation of goodwill and exceptional costs.

Sales revenues

Sales revenues reflect the core activities of the group and include the four acquisitions made during 2003, During 2004, sales revenues increased
by 88.2% to £77.6 million compared with £41.2 million for 2003, which translates into a 130.4% increase in gross profit generated over the same
period. The sales growth in 2004 includes a fuli year's contribution of sales revenues from the caterer, Air Fayre Limited, compared to
6 weeks contribution in 2003, but also includes organic growth of 22% (£69 million) on the in-flight products division’s sales in 2003, as well
as organic growth from the other service companies, M'n'H Recycling Limited and Media on the Move Limited, both of which were acquired in
2003.

Gross profit

The gross profit margin percentage of 33.0% shows a 22.2% increase on the previous year's gross margin percentage of 27.0%. A smali decrease
in the inflight products division's margin as a result of the oil price increase affecting certain supply costs, has been more than offset by the
higher margins achieved by the service companies acquired in 2003,

EBITDA (earnings before interest, taxation, depreciation and amortisation)

EBITDA has increased by 44.6% to £6.3 million after taking into account the Duo Airways exceptional bad debt write off and exceptional
catering contract start-up costs, totalling £0.9 million. Normalised EBITDA, which excludes all exceptional costs, has increased by 2.6% to
£8.0 million on the previous year

Administrative expenses

Excluding amortisation, cxceptional costs and other operating income, administrative expenses are £18.0 million, an increase of 136.8% on 2003
{(£7.6 millior). 2004's administrative expenses include a full year's contribution from Air Fayre Limited of £10.7 million which, if excluded, provides

an adjusted 2004 administrative expenses figure of £7.3 million, which is comparable with the previous year

Goodwill amortisation of £1.5 milion (2003: £0.5 million) has been included in administrative expenses.
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Financial Review (continued)

Operating profit

Operating profit of £5.1 million is net of goodwill amertisation of £1.5 million and excepticnal costs of £0.9 million and compares to operating
profit of £3.4 milion in 2003, which was nct of £0.5 million of goodwill amortisation. At the operating profit level, despite the considerably
higher goodwill amortisation charge in the year and the exceptional costs, the group’s 30% annual average compound growth rate in terms of
opcrating profit has now been maintained over a | Z-year peried,

Profit on sale of investment

The net profit on sale of investment of £0.7 million is a result of the disposal of the whole of the company's investment in Aerobox plc.
Amount written off investment

The company's investment in FlightStore Group plc has been written down by £89,000 to its market value at the year-end.

Interest payable

There has been an increase in interest payable of £0.2 million to £0.5 million as a result of the higher level of borrowings this yzar The principal
reason for the increase in bank borrowings during the year was the establishment of the new 140,000 sq. ft. catering facility at Heathrow.
Excluding exceptional costs of £2.4 million, interest cover has increased to 12 times, compared to | times in the previous year.

Net profit before taxation

The exceptional re-organisation costs, bad debt write off. contract start up costs and higher amortisation charge have all resulted in the net
profit margin decreasing to 4.9% compared to 8.1% in 2003,

Normalised net profit margin before taxation, which excludes all exceptional costs and amortisation of goodwill, has increased to 2.1% in 2004
from 8.8% in 2003. Normalised net profit before taxation increased 94.5% to £7.0 million for 2004 from £3.6 million achieved in 2003,

Taxation

The rate of corporation taxation on current year profits at 34.6% (2003: 27.0%) is significantly higher in 2004 because of the cffect of a higher
amortisation of goodwill figure of £1.5 million (2003: £0.5 million). However, if amortisation of goodwill is cxcluded, the underlying rate of
corporation tax on profits for 2004 is 24.7% (2003: 23.3%).

The full taxation charge, inclusive of deferred taxation and adjustments in respect of previous years, is 44.7% (2003; 28.4%).

Dividends

Dividends per share have been increased |0% to 1.96p from 1.78p in the previous year. The company continues with its 8th year of increasing
dividends by at least 10%,

Earnings per share
Basic carnings per share of 5.78p cormpares te 2.73p in 2003 and diluted carnings per share of 5.60p compares to 9.37p in 2003, These figures
arc based on post-tax earnings figures, which arc net of exceptional costs, the increased level of amortisation of goodwill and a higher total

taxation charge this year.

Normalised diluted earnings per share, which exclude the effects of the exceptional costs and amortisation of goodwill, have shown an increase
of 18.1% to 1274p from 10.79p in 2003.
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Working capital

Net current assets of £3.5 million have improved by £14.2 million during the year from a net current liabilities position as at 31 December 2003
of £10.7 million.

Stocks of £4.1 million were held at the end of the year, as compared to £3.4 million in 2003.

Trade debtors of £15.6 million at the end of the year have increased from £13.5 million in 2003. Debtor collection has improved from 86 days
to 72 days.

Trade creditors, together with accruals and deferred income, total £13.6 million at the end of the year and arc up from £11.7 million in 2003,
Cash flow

The consolidated cash flow statement on page twenty four shows a net decrease in cash for the year of £5.6 million compared to a net increase
in cash in 2003 of £4.8 milfion.

Operating activitics generated a cash inflow of £6.2 million (2003: £2.3 million}. The principal reason for the outflow of cash this year is the
capital expenditure of £9.6 million (before financing of £1.9 million), which was primarily on the new 140,000 sq. ft. Heathrow facility, together
with investment in new technology and new distribution vehicles.

The cost of the acquisition of Air Fayre Limited in the vear was financed by funds raised through the placing and open offer.

Equity and gearing

Share owners' funds at the end of the year have increased by [41% from £15.6 million to £37.6 million. Retained earnings account for £1.3
million of the increase with the remainder relating to the shares issued during the vear in refation to the acquisition of Air Fayre Limited.

Gearing at the year end is 8% compared to 3% at the end of 2003, taking net bank borrowings as a percentage of net assets.

Derivatives and financial instruments

The group’s financial instrurments comprise borrowings, some cash and liquid resources, and varfous itemns, such as trade debtors and trade
creditors, which arise directly from its operations. The group also enters into derivative transactions (principally forward forcign currency
contracts). The purpose of such transactions is to manage the currency risks arising from the group's operations and its sources of finance,

The main risks arising from the group's financial instruments are interest rate risk, liquidity risk and foreign currency risk. The toard reviews and
agrees policies for managing each of these risks and they are summarised below. These policies have remained unchanged since the beginning of
2004.

Interest rate risk

The group finances its operations through a mixture of retained profits and bank borrowings. The directors continually monitor bank balances
and, where possible, place surplus funds on short-term deposit to minimise interest rate risk. The effect of a | percent increase in the bank
interest rate on the group’s net borrowirgs is not considercd matertal.

Liquidity risk

As regards liquidity, the group's target has, throughout the year been to achieve short-term flexibility by a combination of overdraft facilities and
short-term bank loans. The group manages the gearing level of its working capital requirements, and the need for longerterm borrowings is
regularty assessed. However, by reference to cash flow projections, it is regarded that the current level of temporary bank borrowings arc
adequate for the funding of the groug’s working capital.

Foreign currency risk

54% of the sales of the group were denominated in US dollars (2003: 71%). the same currency in which the associated purchases are made. The

decrease is a result of the contribution of the service companies, which have the majonty of their sales and costs denominated in pounds
sterfing. The group hedges its US dollar profit margins on its US dollar sales through the use of forward forcign currency contracts.
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Financial Review (continued)

International Financial Reporting Standards

Following the European Union's adoption of Regulation (EC) No [606/2002, all publicly listed companies within the EU will be required to adopt
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS"") and revised international Accounting Standards {("lAS") which were in issue at 31 March 2004
for their consolidated accounts from 2005 orwards, Consequently, Watermark Group ple will be required to report in accordance with IFRS for
the six months ending 30 June 2005 and in all subsequent annual and interim reports.

The directors have established a dedicated project team to study the financial impact on the group’s accounts of adopting IFRS. The team s
following a three-phase transition plan, which consists of an initial assessment, detailed impact review and implernentation.

The project tearm is currently undertaking the detailed impact study and the directors will consider the results of this study in due course.
However, having concluded the initial assessment, the following key areas have been identified that may impact the group’s financial statements:

Financial instruments

The group has a policy to match its principal projected cash flows by currency to actual or effective borrowings in the same currency. Primarily,
the group uses forward exchange contracts to achicve this. Under existing UK GAAR there is no requirement to measure such derivative
instruments at fair valuc.

Under 1AS 39 Financial Instruments, all derivative financial instruments need to be measured at fair value. Where derivative instruments have been
designated as a cash flow hedge of spedific assets, liabilities, income or expenses, or as a hedge against the net investment in foreign
entities which meet certain cffectiveness criteria, then hedge accounting treatment will apply with the effective portion of the hedges being
recognised as a movement in reserves. Fair value hedges and all other changes in value of foreign currency borrowings and derivative contracts
will be recognised in the income statoment for the period.

Due to existing instruments already in place, the group is unfikely to be able to designate all of its existing foreign currency borrowings and
derivative contracts as hedges and will need to recognise changes in the fair value of these through the income statement.

Share based payments

Under existing UK GAAR the cost of share options is based on the intrinsic value of the options on the date of grant. Such options granted to
employees at market price or under an Inland Revenue approved scheme do not generate an expense,

Under IFRS 2 Share based payments, it will be necessary for the group to measure the cost of all share options using option pricing models. This
cost will be a non-cash expense, but will e required to be recognised within the consolidated IFRS incorne statement.

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations (acquisitions) that have occurred since 31 Decemper 2003 must be accounted for in accordance with IFRS 3 Business
Combinations. However, IFRS | First time adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards, allows an option of not restating acquisitions made
before 31 December 2003 or; alternatively, to restate such acquisitions in accordance with IFRS 3.Whilst the group has not acquired any entitias
since 31 December 2003, it will be nccessary 1o assess the finandial impact of treating previously acquired companies in accordance with IFRS 3.

On adopting International Financial Reporting Standards, goodwill will no longer be amortised. Instead, goodwill will be subject to ar annual
impairrment review. An impairment review of goodwill has been performed as at 31 December 2004, and the directors remain of the opinion
that goodwill is being shown at the correct carrying value, based on expected future cash flows arising from the companies acquired.

Leases
As the group occupies leased properties, IAS 17 Leoses requires the land and buildings element to be considered separately It is possible that

the buildings element of certain property leases, currently being treated as operating leases under UK GAAFR may need to be reclassified and
capitalised within fixed assets as a finance lease under International Financial Reporting Standards.

Crispin Quail
Group finance director
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Directors’ biographies

John A-G-Calthorpe Age 57
Chairman {non-executive)

Jahn A-G-Calthorpe became chairman of Watermark in July 1991
after joining the board at the group’s inception in 1985 He
currently has many active directorships and management roles in
companies and trusts. His career has involved stockbroking, financial
advertising and serving as chief executive of his family owned group
of companies which have extensive property and commercial
interests on an international scale.

John Caulcutt Age 57
Chief executive

John Caulcutt founded Watermark in 1985 and has been integral in
the success of the company over the last 20 years. He started his
career as a stockbroker with Vanderfelt and Co. and was elected a
partner at the age of 2 1. After lcaving the City, he founded Sky Signs
Limited, a marketing services company specialising in acrial
advertising. This company was successfully sold, initially to Hawicy
Group plc in 1980, and later demerged inte Carraun Group plc in
1982.

Crispin Quail FCA Age 44
Group finance director

Crispin Quall joined Watermark as finance director in [996. He was
oreviously financial controlier for 7 years at the tour operator Manos
Holidays. For the two years prior to this, he worked at BTR plc after
training and qualifying as a Chartered Accountant with Pannell Kerr
Forster in 1986.

George Brooksbank FCA Age 56
Part-time executive director

George Brooksbank initially joined the board in 1993 as a non-
executive director: During his carcer he has been managing director
of a privatc venture capital company, worked in corporate finance at
de Zoete & Bevan Limited, sct up and run a retailing company and
been group financial controller at Debenharns ple. He initially trained
and qualified as a Chartered Accountant with Binder Hamiyn in
1972,
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William Skerrett Age 57
Senior independent non-executive director

William Skerrett joined the board in 1998 as a non-executive
director: He currently runs his own human resources consultancy.
Previous appointments were as group human resources director at
Aegis plc and Scholl plc. He has held senior HR positions with
Schering Plough and Johnson & Johnson, and is also a non-executive
director of Construction Learning World.

Maurice Ostro Age 40
Non-executive director

Maurice Ostro joined the beoard on | August 2003 as a
non-executive director upon the completion of the acquisition of
Mediza On The Move Limited.  His previous ventures included
establishing a company supplying ice cream and frozen yogurt to
airlines, He has degrees from New York University, Oxford
Liniversity and the Gemoilogical institute of America.

Danny Bernstein Age 62
independent non-executive director

Danny Bernstein joined the board in May 2004 as a non-executive
director. He is currently the non-executive chairman of Monarch
Airlines Limited, having previously served as managing director
between (99| and 2002. He is also chairman of the British Atr
Transport Association (BATA) and is also a non-executive director of
National Air Traffic Services ple (NATS). He initially trained as a
Chartered Accountant, qualifying in 1969,




Directors’ report

The dircctors present their annual report on the affairs of the group,
together with the accounts and auditors’ report for the year ended
31 December 2004,

Statement of directors’ responsibilities

Company iaw in the United Kingdom requires the directors to
prepare accounts for cach financial year which give a truc and fair
view of the state of affairs of the company and group and of the
profit or loss of the group for that period, After making enquiries,
the directors have a reasonable expectation that the group has
adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the
foreseeable future. For this reasen, they continue to adopt the going
concern basis in preparing the accounts.

In preparing the accounts, the directors are required to seloct
suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently, make
judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent, and state
whether applicable accounting standards have been followed, subject
to any material departures disclosed and explained in the accounts.

The directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records
which disclose with reascnable accuracy at any time the financial
position of the company and the group and enable them to ensure
that the accounts comply with the Companies Act 1985 They are
also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the company and the
group and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and
detection of fraud and other irregularitics,

The directers are also responsible for the directors’ report and the
directors’ remuneration report, and the maintenance and integrity of
the company's corporate website, www.watermark.co.uk.

Activities and results

The group's principal activities comprise the provision of travel
supplies and cabin management services to the international travel
industry.

The chairman’s and chief exccutive’s letter to share owners on pages
two and three and the financial review on pages four to seven report
on the prncipal activities of the group, its financial and operating
performance during the year and the future development of the
business.

The subsidiary undertakings principally affecting the profits or net
assets of the group in the year are listed in note 14 to the accounts.

Dividends
Subject to approval at the Annual General Meeting, the directors
recommend a final ordinary dividend of 1.96p. It is proposed that the

dividend be paid on 27 July 2005 to sharc owners on the register at
| July 2005,

nine

Directors
The company’s current directors are listed on page eight.

John A-G-Cafthorpe, William Skerrett and George Brooksbank retire
from the board by rotation and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-election.

Danny Bernstein was appointed to the board on Fl May 2004.

Mark Scott resigned from the board on 29 June 2004 and Paul Evans
resigned from the board on 31 December 2004,

The directors’ interests in the ordinary shares and share options of
the company are disclosed within the directors’ remuneration report
on pages fourteen to nineteen.

Transactions with directors are set out in note 31 to the accounts.
Charitable and political contributions

Charitable contributions in the UK amounted to £1,462 during the
year {2003: £1,350). No political contributions were made during the
year or the prior yean

Employment policies

The group's employment policies are designed to create an
employment environment which attracts, retains and motivates the
very best people.

The group recognises that this can only be achieved through an
active policy of equal opportunity from sclection and recruitrment,
through training and development, appraisal and promotion.

The group’s policy is to ensure a working environment which is free
from all types of discrimination and is one where all employess
receive equal treatment regardless of gender coleur, cthnic or
national origin, disabifity, age, marital status, sexual orientation or
religion.

Employses with disabilitics, or who become disabled during their
employment, are encouraged to dovelop their skills to their full
potential and, under the equal opportunities policies operated by the
group, cvery cffort is made to meet their individual needs.

Systems are in place to ensure that all employees are made aware
on a regular basis of the group’s policies, programmes and progress,
including financial and economic factors affecting the group’s
performance. Extensive use is made of briefing meetings, notice
boards and through other internal communication channels to
ensure employees understand the business strategy and are able to
contribute to its achieverent.

Employees are encouraged to grovide feedback on a regular basis
through their perfarmance reviews, during briefing meetings and
directly to the Audit Committee if required. All views expressed by
employees are reviewed and acted upon in confidence.
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Success for the group is dependent upon the quality and
performance of its employees. To cencourage and motivate
employees to participate in the group’s performance, a range of
approved and unapproved share option schemes are in place.
Further details of these share option schemes are described within
the directors’ remuncration report on pages fourteen to nineteen.

Health, safety and the environment

The group is committed to the health, safety and welfare of its
employees, customers and others. Accordingly, it is the group's
policy to manage its activitics so as to aveid causing any unnecessary
or unacceptable risk to health and safety and the environment. The
group has put in place documented systems and policies for
ensuring continuous progress towards achieving its targets and
objectives,

The group recognises that safe operations depend not only on
technically sound plant and equipment but also on competent
people and an active health, safety and environmental culture. It
ensures that its employees, contractors and others are informed,
engaged in and committed to the health, safety and environmental
improvement process. To facilitate this commitment, its workforee is
carefully sclected and trained and their skills and competencies
regularly assessed.

The group recognises the importance of its responsibility for health,
safety and environmental performance. The group manages these
responsibilities as a core business activity and is aware of its
obligations at all times.

Supplier payment policy

The group’s policy is to settle terms of payment with suppliers when
agreeing the terms of transactions. Payment terms vary. reflecting
tocal practice throughout the world, and it is the group’s policy to
abide by the torms of payment, provided suppliers perform in
accordance with the agreed terms.

The parent company, Watermark Group plc, has no trade creditors.

The average age of invoices outstanding in the group was &1 days at
31 December 2004 (2003: 45 days).

Share capital

The authority given to the directors to allot ordinary shares of the
company, and the directors’ power to allot equity seeuritics for cash
other than to existing share owners on a pro rata basis, expire at the
Annual General Meeting.

To ensure a degree of flexibility in the aliotment of ordinary shares
of the company, the directors recommend that both the authority
and the power to allot shares be renewed so as to expire at the
conclusion of the Annual General Meeting of the company to be
held in the year 2006.
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Details of changes in the share capital during the year are disclosed
in note 22 to the accounts. On |5 April 2005, the following share
owners, other than directors, held more than 3% of the company's
share capital:

S0I% Britel Fund Nominees Limited Fund
4.17% Chase Nominees Limited

3.41% Possfund Nominees Limited
321% HSBC Global Custody Nominee (UK) Limited
Account 934567

3.03% HSBC Global Custody Nominee (UK) Limited
Account 81 | 664

The directors have not been advised of any other individual interest
or group of interests held by persons acting together which, at 15
April 2005, exceeds 3% of the company's issued share capital.

Corporate governance

Details concerning the group’s arrangements relating to corperate
governance and its compliance with the Combined Code are given
on pages oleven to thirteen. The directors’ remuncration repert is on
pages fourteen to nineteen.

Annual General Mecting

The notice convening the Annual General Mecting to be held on 29
June 2005 at Tpm at the company’s Heathrow prermises will be sent
out separately,

Auditors

On | July 2004, the Grant Thornton partnership transferred its
business to a limited liability partnership, Grant Thornton UK LLP
Under section 26(5) of the Companies Act 989, the directors
consented to extend the appointment as auditors to Grant
Thormton UK LLP from | July 2004, The directors will place a
resolution before the Annual General Meeting to re-appoint Grant
Thorrton UK LLP as auditors for the forthcoming year

By order of the board

Belmore Park
Upham
Hampshire
SO32 1HQ

Crispin Quail
Campany secretary

18 April 2005




Corporate governance

The company is committed to applying the highest standards of
corporate governance. The board is accountable to the company's
share owners for goad corporate governance.

Compliance

Except for amendments which are currently being made to the
terms of reference for the audit committee and remuneration
committee, the board of directors consider the company has
complied throughout the year ended 31 December 2004 with the
Codc provisions set out in Section | of the Combined Code (2003).

This report and the directors’ remuncration report describe how it
complies with the provisions of the Cambined Code.

The board

The company’s objectives include the delivery of sustainable value to
share owners through the concept of an effective board leading and
controlling the company. The board considers that it has shown its
commitment te this objective by explaining the group’s current
strategy to all its employees and seeking their input, mecting on a
regular basis throughout the year and formally considering how and
to whom matters covered at each meeting should be
communicated beyond the board.

The company's commitment to achieving a balance of executive and
non-executive directors is shown by the fact that the board consists
of three executive directors and four non-executive directors.
Biographical details of the directors are given on page cight. The
non-executive directors, with the exception of John A-G-Calthorpe
and Maurice Ostro, are independent of management and any
business o other relationship which could interfore wath the
exercise of their independent judgement. The board considers
Willliam Skerrett to be independent, despite his participation in the
company's share option scheme.

The board reviews the performance of its exccutive and non-
executive directors and relevant committees on an annual basis and
critically compares this to the objectives set for each director. The
revicw process is led by the senior independent director who will
provide relevant feedback to each directar. The perfermance of the
board as a whole is reviewed by the non-executive directors,

During the year, Danny Bernstein was appointed as a non-exccutive
director. The board did not use an external search consultant, nor
did it advertise the position. The board's main criteria was to ensure
the non-executive director had relevant industrial experience and
was a person who was known within the airline industry The beard
identified Danny Bernstein during their search and strongly believe
they have succeeded in the appointment of a non-executive director
who has a strong understanding of the industry and the risks facing
the company.

The board has divided responsibilities for managing the board and
the company’s business by appointing Jehn A-G-Calthorpe as non-
executive chairman, John Caulcutt as chief executive and William
Skerrett as the senior independent non-executive director,
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The board is responsible for approving company policy and strategy.
A full board meeting is held at least every two months and has a
schedule of matters specifically reserved to it for decision. During
2004, the board met formally 8 times with all the directors
attending each meeting, except for George Brooksbank and Paul
Evans who each attended 7 of the meetings held. Management
supplies the board with appropriate and timely information about
the group’s activities and developments and the directors are free to
seek any further information they consider necessary. Al directors
have access to advice from the company secretary and may take
independent professional advice at the company’s expense. Training
is available for new directors and other directors as necessary.

The board has sought to ensure that directors are properly briefed
on issues arising at board meetings by establishing procedures for
distributing board papers in advance of meetings, considering the
adequacy of the information provided before making decisions,
adjourning meetings or deferring decisicns when directors have
concerns about the information available to them, having a standing
agenda item to consider the timeliness and quality of information,
and making the company secretary responsible to the board for the
timeliness and quality of information.

The board considers that the size of the board is such that it is not
necessary to establish a nomination committec. Nevertheless, a
formal and transparent procedure is followed when appointing now
directars, approval of which is subject to the majority decision of the
board. These procedures were followed in relation to the
appointment of Danny Bernstein.

All directors are subject to re-election every three years and three
directors must retire each year. For all directors appointed during
the year re-election at the first Annual General Meeting after
appointment s required, in accordance with the prowvisions of the
Code of Best Practice. As disclosed in the directors’ report, Danny
Barnstein retired following his appointment during the vear and was
re-clected at the 2004 AGM. john A-G-Calthorpe, William Skerett
and George Brocksbank are due to retire by rotation at the 2005
Annual General Meeting, and offer themselves for re-election.

The unexpired terms of their contracts at the Annual General
Meeting on 22 June 2005 will be:

John A-G-Calthorpe & months
William Skerrett & months
George Brooksbank & maonths

At no time during the year has any director had any material
interest in a contract with any group company, being a contract of
significance in relation to the group’s business, other than john
Caulcutt's interest in the contract to provide rent and other
services to Watermark Limited, as disclosed in note 31.
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Relations with share owners

The directors seek to build on a mutual understanding of objectives
between the company and its share owners Dy encouraging two-way
communications with institutional investors, analysts and private
Investors.

The company values the views of its share owners and recognises
their interest in the company's strategy and performance, board
membership and quality of management.

The board considers the Annual Report and the Annual General
Meeting to be the primary methods of communicating with share
owners. The preliminary and interim results anncuncements are sent
to all share owners and the group responds to all communications
from individual share owners on a wide range of topics.

The board communicates with investors and encourages their
participation by inviting all share owners to submit questions in
advance of the Annual General Meeting. The company helds regular
meetings and presentations with its institutional share owners,
analysts and brokers to discuss objectives, particularly following the
announcement of interim and preliminary results, which are
generally in March and September of cach year Other meetings are
held at institutional share owners' request. The feedback from these
meetings is communicated to the rest of the board, including the
non-executive directors, in order to ensure that the full board
understands the views of major share owners,

This year's Annual General Meeting will be held on 29 June 2005 at
Ipm at the company's Heathrow premises, at which time the
chairman of the audit and remuncration committees will be available
to answer share owners questions.

Separate resclutions are proposed on each issue so that they can be
given proper consideration and there is a resclution to approve the
Annual Report and Accounts, The company counts all proxy votes
and will indicate the level of proxies lodged on each resolution, after
it has been dealt with by a show of hands.

All share owners can gain access to the Annual Report and other

information about the company througn the company's website,
which can be found at www.watermari.co.uk.
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Appropriate audit committee responsibilities and
relationships with auditors

The board presents a balanced and understandable assessment of
the company's position and prospects in all annual, interim and
price-sensitive reports and reports to regulators, as well as in the
information presented in accordance with statutory requirements.

The board has shown its commitment to formal and transparent
arrangements for financial reporting, internal control and external
audit by informing all employees that any concerns they have in these
areas can be raised with the chairman of the audit committee in the
strictest confidence. The audit committee has procedures in place to
allow for proportionate and independent investigation of any such
ratters and for appropriate follow-up action to be taken.

The audit committee comprises John A-G-Calthorpe as chairman,
and two independent non-executive directors, William Skerrett and
Danny Bernstein. The audit committee was due to meet twice in
2004, but the second meeting was postponed until February 2005.
All committee members were present at the meetings held in 2004
and February 2005.With effect from 2005 and thereafter, the audit
committee will now meet three times each year

The duties of the audit committee include an annual review of the
effectiveness of the group’s system of internal control, including an
assessment of the need for an internal audit function. The committee
has cansidered the additional risks associated with the enlarged
group and will continue to do so. The board considers that an
internal audit function is not justified at prasent, but it will keep the
decision under review on at least an annual basis.

The terms of reference of the committee also include keeping under
review the scope and resuits of the external audit and its cost
effectiveness, The committee reviews the independence and
objectivity of the external auditors, The committee has the primary
responsibility for making a recommendation on the appointment,
re-appointment and removal of external auditors, Grant Thornton
UK LLP in its capacity as the group's external auditor undertakes
work that it is obliged, orin the view of the committee, is best placed
to perform. Such work may incude taxation-related services,
regulatory matters, work related to acquisitions and mergers and
other closely refated services. The committec reviews the nature
and extent of non-audit services supplied by the external auditors to
the company, seeking to balance independence. objectivity and value
for money.

The audit committee has independent access to the auditors
throughout all reporting periods.

The terms of reference of the audit committee are available on
request by writing to the company secretary at the registered office
address.




Corporate governance {continued)

Maintenance of a sound system of internal control

The board is ultimately responsible for the group's system of internal
centrol and for reviewing its effectiveness.

The group’s system of internal control, including the mechanism by
which the directors routinely review the effectiveness of the system
of internal control and risk management, includes the following:

* Approval and regular reviews of annual budgets;

= Monthly roviews by the executive committee of key financial and
non-financial business performance indicators of the group’s
operating divisions;

«Strict internal financial controls covering capital expenditure,
together with post-investment. performance reviews and treasury
operations;

» Clearly defined organisation structures and appropriate delegated
autherities for executives throughout the group:

» Group-wide policies, standards and procedures refating to key
business activities.

The systern is designed to manage, rather than eliminate, risk of
failure to achieve the business objectives and, as such, can provide
only reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatemnent or loss,
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There is an ongoing process for identifying, evaluating and managing
the significant risks faced by the group that has been in place for the
year under review and up to the date of approval of the Annual
Report and Accounts, and the process is regularly reviewed by the
board. The review covers all controls including financial, operational
and compliance controls and risk management,

The size of the group Is such that the establishment of a scparate risk
committee is not appropriate, and management reports directly to
the full board. A system of business risk identification, assessment and
evaluation is in place within the management process throughout the
group. Strategic risks are regularly reviewed by the board. Risks
relating to the key activities within the subsidiary operating units are
assessed continuously.

The board reviews the risk management and control process and., in
particular, considers the authority and resources of those involved, It
responds to significant risks identified where necessary and provides
assurance in specialist arcas such as heahth and safety.

The board responds to all reports as necessary to maintain a
centrob environment directed towards proper management of risk.

The board confirms that it has conducted a review of the
effectiveness of the group's system of internal controls described
above for the financial year and up to the date of this report in
accordance with the guidance set cut in Internal Centrol: Guidance
for Directors on the Combined Code (" The Turnbull Report™).
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Directors’ remuneration report

The board recognises that directors' rermuneration is of legitimate
concern to the sharc owners and is comimitted to following current
best practice. The company coperates within a competitive
environment that is subject to rapid technical change. [ts
performance depends on the individual contributions of the
directors and employees and it believes in rewarding vision and
innovation.

In accordance with Section 241 A of the Companies Act 1985, the
board presents the directors’ remuneration report for share owner
approval,

Section I: Information not subject to audit
The remuneration committee

The remuneration committee has resporsibility for determining the
appropriate policy for rewarding the group's executive directors and
senior executives. It carries out the policy on behalf of the beoard.

The members of the committee throughout the year have been John
A-G-Calthorpe as chairman, and two independent non-executive
directors, William Skerrett and Danny Bernstein, who replaced Mark
Scott on |} May 2004. None of them has any personal financial
interest in the matters to be decided (other than as share owners),
potential conflicts of interest arising from cross-directorships nor any
day-to-day involvement in running the business.

The committee mects on average twice a year During the year John
A-G-Calthorpe was unable to attend cne of the committee
meetings. As well as considering conditions in the group as a whole,
it takes into account the position of the company relative to cther
companies and is aware of what these companies are paying, though
comparisons are treated with caution to avoid an upward ratchet in
remuneration. The committec consults the chief executive, has
access to professional advice within the company and obtains its own
independent professional advice from outside the company, if
apglicable. The cormmitiee has not considered it necessary to scek
any oxternal professional advice this year The chairman of the
comnmittee maintains contact with the principal share owners.

Policy for determining remuneration

The oolicy of the board is to provide executive remuneration
packages designed to attract, motivate and retain directors of the
calibre necessary to maintain the group’s position as a rmarket leader
and to reward them for enhancing share owner value and return. It
aims to provide sufficient levels of remuneration to do this, but to
avoid paying more than is necessary. The remuneration should also
reflect the directors’ responsibilities and contain incentives to deliver
the company's objectives,

The salaries, bonuses, pension contributions and benefits (which
comprise car benefits, hfe assurance, disability insurance and medical
insurance) of executive directors and other senior executives are
reviewed annually by the remuneration committee having regard to
competitive market practice, sugported by external independent
SOUICes.
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Details of remuneration

The board does not pay more than is necessary to attract and retain
the directors needed to run the company successfully by cnsuring
that the remuneration policy as described below provides for a fair
and independent process in fixing the remuncration.

The main elements of the remuneration packages offered are:
» Basic salary

Each executive director's basic salary is reviewed annually by the
committee. In deciding upon appropriate levels of remuneration
the committee belicves that the company should offer levels of
basic pay reflecting individual responsibilities, compared to similar
positicns in comparable companies, Basic salary is determined by
the remuneration committee, taking into account the performance
of the individual against his set objectives and the performance of
the group. Exccutive directors’ basic salaries are reviewed on
I January each year,

* Annual bonus

The remuneration committee  establishes the  objectives for
rmeasuring bonuses. The executive directors are paid performance
related bonuses, dependent upen their achievement of individual
non-financial objectives and the group meeting pre-determined
profit targets, based on the company's budgets, which are always
set at a higher amount than the previous year urless there are
special circumstances. No bonuses are to be paid in relation to
2004 profit targets.

*Share options

Grants of share options are made on the recommendation of the
remuneration comimittee under an approved and an unapproved
scheme. Under the approved scheme, options are normally only
exercisable after the expiry of three vears from the date of grant
and will lapse if not exercised within a further seven years.

Under the unapproved scheme, options granted after September
2003 are normally only excrcisable after the expiry of three years
from the date of grant and will lapse if not exercised within a
further four years. Options under this scheme granted before
September 2003 are exercisable at any time up to seven years
from the date of grant.

These approved and unapproved scheme options are only
exercisable if the pre-determined performance target of real
growth in the group’s earnings per share over any three vyear
period during the life of the option is achicved. The options
granted under the unapproved scheme on 27 September 2001
had an additional performance target of the share price being at
least 140p per ordinary share after 3 years, which has been met.
The options granted under the unapproved scheme on | Octeber
2002 had an additional performance target of the share price
being at least 225p per ordinary share prior to exercise,
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Directors’ remuneration report {(continued)

The price at which options under the approved scheme are granted is the closing mid-market price at the end of the dealing day on which
the interim or end of year results are announced. Invitations are sent out within thirty days of the announcement of the interim or end of year
results. The price at which options under the unapproved scheme are granted is the prevailing mid-market price at the time of the grant.

* Pensions

The group provides the executive directors with fixed percentage salary-related contributions to their individual money purchase pension
schemes. All pensions are subject to contractual annual increases in line with salary. The normal retirement age for directors is 60,

* Non-executive directors’ fees and salaries

Fees and salaries for non-executive dircctors are determined by the executive directors. Non-executive directors are not cligible to join the
company’s pension scheme, but are able to take up a stakeholder pension if they so wish.

Service contracts

In keeping with current practice, the policy of the company is that directars are employed on rolling service contracts with notice periods of
twelve menths or less. Fach contract and notice period is reviewed on | January in each vear as part of the review of management salarics for
the coming year, Each appointment is terminable on an agreed period of notice, as shown below, by cither party expiring at any time. The policy
of the company is that termination payments, excluding statutory entitlernents, should not exceed more than |2 months basic salary

The following table gives detalls of the current contract of service of cach person who has served as a director of the company at any time

during the year:

Date Notice Salary
Director Position of contract period and fees Benefits
John A-G-Calthorpe Chairman 27 March 2001 Six months £50,000 Life and disability
insurance benefits
John Caulcutt Chief executive & Aprit 2001 Twelve months  £193,000 Life, disabifity and
(Note | below) private medical
insurance bencfits
Crispin Quail Group finance 9 July 1996 Six months £115000 Company car
directer and and travel allowance, life,
company secretary disability and private medical
insurance benefits
George Brooksbank Part-time executive 28 April 1999 Six months £80,000 None
(Note | below] directar
William Skerrett Non-executive |2 August 1998 Six months £25,000 Life and disability
director insurance benefits
Maurice Ostro Non-executive I August 2003 Six months £25,000 Life and disability
{Note 2 below) director insurance benefits
Darny Bernstein Norn-executive | May 2004 Six menths £25.000 Life and disability
{(Note 3 below) director insurance benefits
Mark Scott Non-executive 23 March 2002 Six months £5,000 Life and disabiity

{Note 4 beiow)

director

insurance benefits
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Note | - John Caulcutt was a non-executive director of FlightStore Group ple and Medico Legal Consultancy plc during the year ended 31
Dacember 2004 and recelved the sum of £37,000 from these appointments.

George Braocksbank was a non-executive director of The Wigmore Group ple, CCG Limited and Award International Holdings ple
during the year ended 3| December 2004 and received the sum of £63,000 from these appointments.

During the annual performance review, the board have agreed that John Caulcutt and George Brooksbank arc permitted to retain
these fees. The board consider that their executive duties have not been adversely affected by the non-executive appointments.

Note 2 - Maurice Ostro is also employed as managing director of Air Fayre Limited and Media On The Move Limited under a contract dated 5
December 2003, as amended on 23 February 2004, under which he receives a salary of £85,000 and medical and pension benefits.
The contract provides for a twelve month notice period,

MNote 3 - Danny Bernstein was appointed to the board of Watermark Group plc on 11 May 2004.
Note 4 - Mark Scott resigned from the board of Watermark Group plc on 29 June 2004

Note 5 - Paul Evans resigned from the beard of Watermark Group plc on 31 December 2004, and has been excluded from the above table as
he has no current contract of service.
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The above graph shows Watermark Group pic’s total share owner return (TSR} performance compared to the FTSE All-Share Index over the
last 5 years. TSR is defined as the percentage change in market price of the company shares over the period, assuming the reinvestment of income
and funding of liabllities of the theoretical holding.

The company is a membar of the FTSE All-Share Index and. as such, this sector is considered to be the most appropriate comparator group upon

which a broad equity market index is calculated. TSR has been calculated on a one-month averaging basis in order to reduce the volatility
associated with spot prices,
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Directors’ remuneration report (continued)

Section 2: Information subject to audit
Directors’ remuneration

The total amounts for directors’ remuncration and other benefits were as follows:

2004 2003
£ £
Ernoluments 847,125 742,235
Gains on exercise of share options 640,421 -
Money purchase pension contributions 45,675 45512
1,533,221 787,747
Directors’ emoluments
The emoluments of the directors for the year arc shown below:
Gain on Money Gain on Money
exercise of purchase exercise of purchase
Salary and Total share pension Toral share pension
fees Benefits  emoluments options conwibutions  emoluments options  contributicns
2004 2004 2004 2004 2004 2003 2003 2003
4 £ £ € [3 £ £ £
Executive
John Caulcutt 193,000 2871 195,871 143,250 19,300 178,359 - 16041
Paul Evans
(Note | below) 245000 599 245599 203,750 {5875 163451 - 13,833
Crispin Quail 106,000 3409 109,409 245921 10,500 126213 - 12,262
George Brooksbank 84222 - 84,222 28,500 - 16321 - -
Kevin Peat
(Note 1 below) - - - - - 42981 - 3.375
Non-executive
John A-G-Calthorpe 50,000 - 50,000 - - 55,000
William Skerrett 25.000 - 25,000 - - 20,000
Mark Scott
(Note | below) 12,500 - 12,500 19,000 - 20,000
Maurice Ostro
{Note 2 below) 107,240 617 107,857 - - 15,310
Danny Bernstein
(Note 3 below) [6,667 - 16,667 - - -
Total emoluments 839,629 7,496 847,125 640,421 45,675 742,235 - 45,512

On 5 April 2004, PVYC Supplies (St. Albans) Limited, a company in which john Caulcutt owns 100% of the issued share capital, exercised options
over 200,000 ordinary shares at a price of 59.5p and sold these on that date, resulting in a gain of £227,000.

Note | Mark Scott resigned from the board of Watermark Group plc on 29 June 2004
Paul Fvans resigned from the board of Watermark Group plc on 31 December 2004, His emolurnents include an amount of £70,000
in respect of his compensation for loss of office.
Kevin Peat resigned from the board of Watermark Group plc on 7 July 2003.

Note 2 Maurice Ostro was appointed to the board of Watermark Group plc on | August 2003 and is also managing director of Air
Fayre Limited and Media On The Move Limited, His emptoyment contract dated 5 December 2003, as amended on 23 February 2004
reflects a salary of £85000 and medical and pension banefits, with a twelve manth notice period. The emoluments above comprise
his salary as non-executive director of Watermark Group ple from | August 2003 and as managing director of Air Fayre Linited and
Media On The Move Limited from the date of the companies joining the group.

Note 3 Danny Bernstein was appointed to the board of Watermark Group ple on 11 May 2004

Note 4 All pension contributions made relate to contributions due for the current year
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Share interests

(1) Interests in |p ordinary shares fully paid:
Beneficial interest
at | January 2004

Beneficial interest or later date
Director at 3| December 2004 of appointment
John A-G-Calthorpe 791,840 756,840
John Cauleutt 3.852,665 3,805,405
Crispin Quail 48,000 44,500
George Brookshank 153,900 300,400
William Skerrett 39,000 39.000
Maurice Ostre 80,000 -
Danny Bernstein 10,000

Maurice Ostre did not hold any direct beneficial interest in the shares of Watermark Group plc as at 31 December 2003 but, on 23 February
2004, he acquired 65,000 shares and, on 28 May 2004, he acquired a further 15,000 sharcs.

On joining the company on || May 2004, Danny Bernstein acquired 10,000 shares in Watermark Group plc, which continued to be held at 31
December 2004,

The above shares are all beneficially held. In addition to the above, the following shares were held:

John Caulcutt is a beneficiary of a pension scheme managed by James Hay Pension Trustees Limited, which had an interest in 815,000 shares in
the company at 31 December 2004 (2003: 815,000},

Jahn Caulcutt owns 100% of PVC Supplics (St Albans) Limited, which held 29,567 shares in the company at 31 Decernber 2003 and sold
these shares in April 2004.

John A-G-Calthorpe owns 51% of the issued share capital of Hintlesham Heldings Limited, whose wholly owned subsidiary undertaking,
Ampton Investments Limited, had an interest in { 887,288 shares in the company at 31 December 2004 (2003; | 887,288 sharcs).

Media On The Move Holdings Limited owns 651,042 shares in Watermark Group plc as at 31 December 2004. Maurice Ostro is one of the
potential beneficiarics of The Max Ostro Children’s Trust, which holds a controlling interest in Media On The Move Holdings Limited.

Maurica Ostro is one of the potential beneficiaries of The Max Ostro Children's Trust, which held a controlling interest in the shares of Air Fayre
Limited at 31 December 2003 On 23 February 2004, these shares weie acquired by Watermark Group ple for a consideration of
£3.882.773.

The Air Fayre Ali-Employes Share Incentive Plan Trust owns 90,500 shares in Watermark Group plc as at 31 December 2004. Maurice Ostro is
a Trustee of the Air Fayre All-Employee Snare Incentive Plan Trust.

In the period between 31 December 2004 and the signing of these accounts, no transactions have taken place in relation to the directors’

interests othar than John A-G-Calthorpe transferring 40,000 shares in Watermark Group ple from his personal holding to that of Ampton
Investments Limited on 23 March 2005. This transfer has no offect on his total beneficial holding.
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Directors’ remuneration report (continued)

Share interests (continued)
(2) Options to acquire Ip ordinary shares:

Share options were granted to and exercised by the directors during the year as follows:

As at Granted Exercised As at Share price Period
3| December during during 3| December Option at date of during which
2003 the year the year 2004 price exercise exercisable
Number Number Number Number
John A-G-Calthorpe 30,000 - - 30,000 72p - 29/3/2004 to 28/3/2008
30,000 - - 30,000 53p - 28/%/2004 to 27/9/2008
John Cauleutt 150,000 - 150,000 - 71.5p 167p 3/4/2001 to 2/4/2008
270,000 - - 270,000 53p - 281972004 to 27/9/2008
- 75,000 - 75,000 [78p - 297112007 to 28/1/72014
Paul Evans 250,000 - 250,000 - 101 .5p 167p /1072002 to 30/9/2009
150,000 - - 150,000 101.5p - 1/10/2002 to 30/9/2009
50.000 - 50,000 - 87p 167p 19/3/2003 to 18/3/72010
- 75,000 - 75000 [ 78p - 29/112007 to 28/1/2014
Crispin Qualil 17.647 - I'7.647 - 34p 167p 29/4/2000 to 28/4/2007
100,000 - 100,000 - 48.5p 167p 5/5/1998 to 4/5/2005
40,000 - 40,000 - 4].5p 167p 26/5/1999 to 25/5/2006
50,000 - 50,000 - 59.5p 167p 6/4/2000 to 57472007
50,000 - - 50,000 7 - 29/3/2001 to 28/3/2008
130,000 - - 130,000 S3p - 28972004 to 27/972008
- 50,000 - 60,000 178p - 29/1/2007 to 28/1/2C14
George Brooksbank 30,000 - 30,000 - 72p 167p 29/3/2001 to 28/3/2008
50,000 - - 60,000 53p - 28/9/2004 1o 27/9/2008
- 50,000 - 50,000 178p - 29/1/2007 to 28/1/2014
William Skerrett 20,000 - - 20,000 72p - 29/3/2001 to 28/3/2008
20,000 - - 20,000 53p - 281912004 to 27/9/2008
Mark Scott 20,060 - 20,000 - 72p 167p 29/3/2001 to 28/3/2008
20000 - - 20000 53p - 28/9/2004 to 27/2/2008

Maurice Ostre - - - - - - -

All of the above options rclate to the company’s unapproved scheme, except for the 17,647 options previously held by Crispin Quail in the
approved scheme,

In addition to the above. PYC Supplies (St Albans) Limited, in which John Cauleutt owns [00% of the issued share capital, held options to
subscribe for 200,000 ordinary shares at a price per ordinary share of 59.5p as at 31 December 2003.These options were axercised on 5 April
2004 and the shares were sold for £346,000, resulting in a gain of £227.000.

MNo directors' share options have lapsed and no variations to the terms and conditions of the scheme have been made during the year.
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Auditors’ report

Report of the independent auditors to the members
of Watermark Group plc

We have audited the financial statements of Watermark Group ple
for the year ended 31 December 2004, which comprise the
consolidated profit and loss account, the consolidated staternent of
total recognised gains and losses, the balance sheets, the
consolidated cash flow statement, and notes | te 36, These financial
staternents have been prepared under the accounting policies sct
out therein. We have also audited the information in the directors’
remuneration report that is described as having been audited.

This report is made solely to the company's members, as a body, in
accordance with Section 235 of the Companies Act 1785, Qur audit
work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company’s
members those matters we are required to state to them in an
auditors’ report and for no cother purpose. To the fullest extent
permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to
anyone other than the company and the company’s members as a
body, for our audit warl, for this report, or for the opinions we have
formed.

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

The directors’ responsibilities for preparing the annual report, the
directars’ rermuneration report and the financial statements in
accordance with United Kingdom law and accounting standards are
set out in the statement of directors’ responsibilities.

Qur responsibility is to audit the financial statements and the part of
the directors’ remuncration report to be audited in accordance with
relevant legal and regulatcry requirements and United Kingdom
auditing standards.

We report to you our opinion as to whetaer the financial statements
give a true and fair view and whether the finandial statements and
the part of the directors' remuneration report to be audited have
been properly prepared in accordance with the Companics Act
1985. We also report to you if, in our opinion, the directors’ report
is not consistent with the finandial staterncents, if the company has nat
kept proper accounting records, if we have not received all the
information and explanations we require for our audit, or if
information specified by law regarding directors’ remuneration and
transactions with the group is nat disclosed.

We review whether the corporate governance statement reflects
the company's compliance with the nine praovisions of the Combined
Code spediffed for our review by the Listing Rules of the Financial
Services Authority, and we report If it does not. We are not required
to consider whether the board's statements on internal contreol
cover all risks and controls, or form an opinion on the effectiveness
of the group's corporate governance procedures or its risk and
control procedurcs.

We read other information contained n the annual report, and
consider whether it is consistent with the audited financial
statements. This other information comprises only the chairman’s
and chief exceutive’s letter to share owners, the financial review, the
directors’ biographies, the directors’ report, the corporate
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governance statement and the unaudited part of the directors
remuneration report. We consider the implications for our report if
we become aware of any apparent misstatements or material
inconsistencies with the financial statements. Our responsibilities do
not extend to any other information.

Basis of opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with United Kingdom
auditing standards issued by the Auditing Practices Board. An audit
includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the
amounts and disclosures in the finandial statements and the part of
the directers’ remuneration report to be audited. It also includes an
assessment of the significant estimates and judgements made by the
directors in the preparation of the financial staterments, and of
whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the group's
circumstances, consistently applicd and adequately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the
information and explanations which we considered necessary in
order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable
assurance that the finandial staternents and the part of the directors'
remuneration report to be audited are free from material
misstatement, whether caused by fraud or other irregularity or erron
I forming our opinion, we also evaluated the overall adequacy of the
financial staternents and the part of the directors remuneration
report to be audited.

Opinion

In our opinion:

- the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the company and the group at 31 December 2004 and
of the profit of the group for the year then ended; and

- the financial statements and the part of the directors’

remuneration report to be audited have been properly prepared
in accordance with the Companies Act 1985,

Gromt Thatwtn. Ul LAF

Grant Thornton UK LLP
Registered Auditors

Chartered Accountants
Southarmpton

18 April 2005
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Consolidated profit and loss account
for the year ended 31 December 2004

2004 2003

Notes £9000 £'000
Turnover 77,581 41,215
Cost of sales (51.962) (30,098)
Gross profit 25619 11,117
Administrative expenses (exduding exceptional items) 5 (19.601) {7.750)
Exceptional bad debt 5 (591) .
Exceptional contract start-up costs 5 (302) -
Total administrative expenscs 5 (20494 (7.750)
Operating profic ) 5125 3,367
Profit on sale of investrent 14 676 233
Exceptional re-organisation costs 7 (1,436} -
fnterest receivable and similar income 64 28
Armount written off investment 14 (89) -
fnterest payable and similar charges ) (505) (304
Profit on ordinary activities before taxation 3,835 3,324
Taxation on profit on ordinary activities B {1.713) (744
Profit for the financial year 2,122 2,380
Dividends 10 (885) (678)
Retained profit for the year 1,237 1,702
Earnings per share Il
Normaiised carnings per share™
Basic earnings per share [3.15p [1.20p
Diluted eamnings per share [274p 10.79p
Standard earnings per share
Basic earnings per share 5.78p 3.73p
Diluted earnings per share 5.60p 9.37p

All of the activities of the group are continuing,

* Normalised carnings per share excludes amortisation of goodwilt and exceptional costs. The calculation of normalised eamings per share s
presented as note .

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this consolidated profit and foss account.

Consolidated statement of total recognised gains and losses
for the year ended 3| December 2004

Total Toral
2004 2003
£000 £'000
Profit for the financial year 2,122 2,380
Currency translation 60 (468)
Total recognised gains relating to the year 2,182 1,912
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Consolidated balance sheet
as at 3! December 2004

2004 2003
Notes £000 £'000
Fixed assets
Intangible asscts P2 28,534 30,202
Tangible assets i3 10,433 [.606
Investrnents 4 217 330
39,184 32,138
Current assets
Stocks 15 4096 3,381
Debtors 16 20611 18,157
Cash at banlk and in hand 1,823 7102
26530 28,640
Creditors: Amounts falling due within one year |7 (22,298) (39.351)
Net current assets/{liabilities) 3532 (10711}
Total assets less current liabilities 42,716 21,427
Creditors: Amounts falling due after more than one year [8 (4.612) (5,778)
38,104 15,649
Provisions for liabilities and charges 19 (523) (48}
Net assets 37,581 15,601
Capirtal and reserves
Cailed-up share capital 22 404 249
Share premium account 23 22,803 599
Shares to be issued 24 6,496 8,172
Capital redemption reserve 25 24 24
Merger reserve 25 (527) (527}
Profit and joss account 25 8,381 7,084
Equity share owners’ funds 26 37.581 15,601

The accounts on pages 21 to 43 were approved by the board on 18 Aprl 2005 and signed on its behalf by:

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this consolidated balance sheet.
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Company balance sheet
as at 3| December 2004

2004 2003
Notes £000 £'000

Fixed assets
Tangible assets 13 . -
fnvestments 4 35,350 35,487
35,350 35487

Current assets
Debtors 6 4090 2,709

Cash at bank and in hand 518
4,090 3227
Creditors: Amounts falling due within one year t7 (5,400) (24,741)
Net current liabilities (1310 {21514
Total assets less current liabilities 34,040 13973
Creditors: Amounts falling due after more than one year '8 (3,187) (4.250)
Net assets 30,853 9,723
Capital and reserves
Calted-up share capital 22 404 249
Share premium account 23 22,803 599
Shares to be issued 24 5,496 8,172
Capital redemption rescrve 25 24 24
Profit and loss account 25 1126 &79
Equity share owners’ funds 30,853 9.723

The accounts on pages 21 to 43 were approved by the board on |8 April 2005 and signed on its behalf by,

John A- althorpe
Direcy

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this company balance sheet.
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Consolidated cash flow statement
for the year ended 31 December 2004

2004 2003

Notes £000 £'000

Net cash inflow from operating activities 27 6,180 2,333

Returns on investments and servicing of finance 28 (44 1) (276)

Taxation (2.066) (617)

Capital expenditure and financial investment 28 (7.038) (104)
Acquisitions and disposals 28 {19,308) 2,652

Equity dividends paid 719 (396)
Cash (outflow)/inflow before financing (23392} 3592
Financing 28 | 7,747 1,191
(Decrease)/increase in cash in the year 29 (5,645} 4,783

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this consolidated cash flow staternent.
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Notes to the accounts
for the year ended 3| December 2004

Accounting policies
The principal accounting policies are summarised below. They have all been applied consistently throughout the year and the preceding yearn

The accounts are prepared under the historical cost convention and in accordance with applicable United Kingdom accounting standards.

(1) Basis of consolidation

The group accounts consolidate the accounts of Watermark Group plc and its subsidiary undertakings (sec note 14) made up to 31
December each year

Watermark Group {Holdings) Limited and its subsidiaries and Watermark Travel Supplics Limited were accounted for by the merger method,
All ather subsidiaries acquired were accounted for by the acquisition method.

(2) Goodwill
Goodwill on acquisitions is the excess of the fair value of the consideration given to acquire a business or a subsidiary over the fair value of
the separable net assets acquired, whare the acquisition methed of accounting has been used. Goodwill on acquisitions is capitalised within

intangible assets and is amortised on a straight-line basis aver the directors’ estimate of its useful economic life. Provision is made for any
impairment.

Goodwill arising on acquisitions in the year ended 31 December [997 and earlier periods was written off to reserves in accordance with
the accounting standards then in force and has not been reinstated in the balance sheet. Such goodwill will be charged or credited to the
profit and loss account on the subsequent disposal of the business to which it relates.

(3) Profit atrributable to Watermark Group ple
No profit and loss account for Watermark Group ple has been presented as permitted by Section 230 of the Companics Act 1985,

The profit for the financial year dealt within the accounts of the parent company, Watermark Group plc was £447,000 (2003: £485,000) and
is stated after taxation and dividends.

(4) Turnover

Turnover represents amounts receivable for products and services provided in the UK and overseas, net of trade discounts, VAT and other
sales related taxes.

Turnover in the products division is recognised either at the time of shipment or delivery to the dlient, dependent on the terms of supply
agreed with the client. Turnover in the services division, including marketing services and consultancy, is recognised at the point of delivery to
the client.

{5} Pension costs
Contributions made by the group to defined contribution personal pension plans of certain employees are charged to the profit and foss
account as incurred.

(6) Taxation

Current taxation, including UK corporation taxation and foreign taxation, is provided at amounts expected to be paid {or recovered) using
the tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.

Deferred taxation is recogrised on all timing differences where the transactions or events that give the group an obligation to pay more tax
in the future, or a right to pay less tax in the future, have occurred by the balance sheet date. Deferred taxation assets are recognised when
it is morc lkely than not that they will be recovered. Deferred taxation is measured using rates of tax that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the bafance sheet date.
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I Accounting policies (continued)
(7) Tangible fixed assets
Tangible fixcd assets are stated at cost less depreciation and any provision for impairment. Depreciation is provided on all tangible assets, at

rates calculated to write off the cost, less estimated residual value, of each asset on a straight line basis over its expected useful
cronomic life at the following annual rates:

Plant and rmachinery 10% - 25%

Fixtures and fittings 10% - 25%

Office equipment 25%

Motor vehicles 20-25%

Leasehold improvements Over the term of the lease

(8) Leasing and hire purchase commitments

Assets obtainad under leascs and hire purchase contracts which result in the transfer to the company of substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership (finance leases) are capitalised as tangible fixed assets at the estimated present value of underlying lease payments and are
depreciated in accordance with the above policy. Obiigations under such agreements are included in creditors net of finance charges
allocated to future periods. The finance element of the rental payments is charged to the profit and loss account over the period of each
lease or hire purchase contract so as to produce a constant periodic rate of charge on the outstanding balance of the net obligations in cach
seriod.

Rentals paid under other lcases (opcrating lcases) are charged against incorne on a straight-line basis over cach lease term.

(%) Investments

Fixed asset investments arc stated at cost less amounts written off to the profit and loss account.

(¥0) Stocks

Stocks are stated at the lowaer of cost and net realisable value. Net realisable value is based on estimated selling price less expected further
costs to be incurred to completion and disposal. Provision is made for obsolete, slow-moving or defective items where appropriate.

(1) Foreign currency translation

Transactions In foreign currencies are recorded at the rate ruling at the date of the transaction or; if applicable, at the forward contract rate.

The results of foreign subsidiarics arc translated at the average rate of exchange for the year Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the rate of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date or, if applicable, at the forward contract rate.

The net assets of foraign subsidiaries are translated under the closing rate method using the rate of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date
on, if appropriate, at the forward contract rate. Exchange differences arising on transiation of the opening net assets arc dealt with through
reserves. All other exchange differences are included in the profit and loss account.

{12) Derivative financial instruments

The group uses forward foreign currency contracts to reduce exposure to foreign exchange risk movements. The instrument must be
related to specific forcign currency assets or liabilities or to a probable commitment reflected in the same or similar currencics.

Forward forcign currency contracts are not recognised within the financial statements other than to translate the foreign currency monetary
balances which are covered by the financial instrument, using the forward exchange rate, where appropriate. Gains and losses arising on these
contracts are only recognised in the profit and loss account when the underlying transaction covered by the financial instrurnent has itself

been reflected in the group's accounts, or upon maturity of the instrument.

The group does not hald or issue derivative financial instruments for speculative purposes.
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Notes to the accounts (continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2004

2 EBITDA (earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation)

Reconciliation of profit on ordinary activities before taxation to EBITDA: 2004 2003

£'000 £:000
Profit on ordinary activities before taxation 3835 3324
Intercst receivable (64) (28)
Interest payable 505 304
Depreciation 514 256
Amartisation of goodwill 1,541 523

6,331 4,379

Normalised EBITDA (earnings before interest, taxation, depreciation, amortisation and exceptional costs)

Reconciliation of profit on erdinary activities before taxation to normalised EBITDA: 2004 2003
£000 £000
Profit on ordinary activities before taxation 3835 3324
Exceptional bad debt {note 6) 591 -
Exceptional contract start-up costs (note 6} 302
Exceptional re-organisation costs {note 7) [ 436 -
Profit on sale of investment (note 14) (676) (233
Interest receivabie (64) (28)
Interest payable 505 304
Depreciation 514 256
Amortisation of goadwill 1541 523
7,984 4,146
3 Normalised profit before tax
Reconciliation of profit on ordinary activities before taxation to normalised profic on ordinary activities 2004 2003
before taxation £'006 £'000
Profit on ordinary activities before taxation 3835 3324
Exceptional bad debt {note 6} 591 -
Exceptional contract start-up costs (note 6) 302
Exceptional re-organisation costs (note /) 1,436 -
Profit on sale of investment (note 14) {676) (233)
Amortisation of goodwill 1,541 523
7.02% 3614

4 Segmental analysis

in the opinion of the directors, the segmental reporting of results would be seriously prejudicial to the business and accordingly it has not

been disclosed.

5 Total administrative expenses (net)

2004 2003

£000 £'000

Administrative expenses (excluding exceptional items) 19601 8,167
Exceptional bad debt (note 6) 591 -
Excepticnal contract start-up costs (note 6) 302 -
20494 8167

Other operating income - (417)
Total administrative expenses 20,494 7.750
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6 Operating profit is stated after charging:

2004 2003
£000 £'000
Depreciation and amaortisation;
- owned fixed assets 447 241
- assets under hire purchase agreements 67 15
Amortisation of goodwill [,541 523
Operating lease rentals:
- plant and rmachinery 137 55
- land and buildings 852 178
Fees paid to primary auditors:
Audit services - statutory audit 53 60
- audit related regulatory reporting 2 5
Taxation services - compliance 29 32
- advisory 31 18
fFees paid to other auditors:
Audit services - statutory audit 28 |4
Other services - accountancy advice 7 5
Exceptional bad debt (see below) 591
Exceptional contract start-up costs (see below) 302 -
and after crediting:
Foreign currency translation (503} 25

The exceptional bad debt relates to the net amount written off following the collapse of Duo Airways Limited.
The exceptional start-up costs relate to the costs associated with the setting up of a new catering contract.
The foreign exchange gain achieved this year reflects the comparny's policy to actively take advantage of exchange rate movements, where
possible.

7 Exceptional re-organisation costs
The group has undergone a fundamental re-crganisation of its operations, both in terms of physical location, management and staffing.
The new Heathrow facility, has been developed into the group’s main UK operating unit. It is intended to house the majority of the group's
operations, historically carried out from a range of disparate facilities, together with the newly centralised finance and administration functions

far the enlarged group. It also acts as a base for the group’s Encompass partners, and the operation of its total cabin-management programme.

The costs associated with the re-organisation relate principally to the closure costs in the UK, the catering relocation and the group
intagration, and arc analysed below:

2004
£'000
Property closures 54
Assets write off 644
Redundancy and salary costs 581
tegal and professional 26
Other 3t
1,436
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Notes to the accounts (continued)
for the year ended 3| December 2004

8 Interest payable and similar charges

2004 2003
£'000 £000
On loans and overdrafts 484 297
On hire purchase agreements 0 3
Other interest bl 4
505 304
9 Taxation on profit on ordinary activities
2004 2003
£'000 £000
Current year
UK corporation taxation (RN 750
Foreign taxation 247 |45
Prior years
UK corporation taxation (88)
Forcign taxation {2 -
1,238 896
Deferred taxation (current year) 475 48
Taxation charge for the year
1.713 944

Factors affecting taxation charge for period:

The taxation assessed for the period is lower than the standard rate of corporation taxation in the UK (30%). The differences are explained

as follows:
2004 2003
£000 £'000
Profit on ordinary activitics before taxation 3,835 3324
Profit on ordinary activities multiplied by standard rate
of corporation taxation in the UK of 30% 151 997
Effect of.
Expenscs not deductible for taxation purposes - amortisation 462 |79
Expenses not deductible for taxation purposes - other 258
Gains 2
Timing differences between depreciation and capital allowances (389) (2
Utilisation of taxation losses 58 (48)
Decrcase/{increase) in provisions - 18
Lower taxation rates on overseas camings (210) {248)
Adjustments to taxation charge i respect of prior periods (90 -
Current taxation charge for period
1.238 896
10 Dividends
2004 2003
£000 £000
Dividend payable at |.96p per sharc (2003: |.78p) 841 675
Under provision in prior year 44 3
885 678

The under orovision arises as a result of new shares ranking for dividend being issucd during the year
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1| Earnings per share
Basic and diluted earnings per share have been calculated in accordance with FRS!4 - Eamnings per share.

Diluted earnings par share takes into account the effect of the exercise of employee share options and shares to b issuad where these are
expected to difute eamings.

in order to show results from operating activities on a comparable basis, a nermalised earnings per share has been presented which excludes
amortisation and exceptional costs from the adiusted earnings calculation.

The calculations of earnings per share are based on the following profits and numbers of shares:

Weighted Total Weighted Tozal
average Earnings average Earnings
Earnings shares per share Earnings shares per share
2004 2004 2004 2003 2003 2003
£'000 Number {pence} £000 Number (pence)
Basic earnings per share 2,122 36,720,161 5.78 2,380 24,466,277 9.73
Dilutive effect of share options - 1,181,095 (0.18) - 926,935 (0.35)
Diluted earnings per share 2,122 37,901,256 5.60 2,380 25,393,212 9.37
Add amortisation of goodwill |54 - 407 523 - 206
Add exceptional costs {post-tax) 1,638 - 432 - - -
Less profit on sale of investment (post-tax) (473) - {1.25) (163) - (0.64)
MNormalised diluted earnings per share 4828 37,901,256 12.74 2,740 25,393,212 10.79
Dilutive effect of share options - {1,181,095) 041 - {926935) 0.41
Normalised diluted earnings per share 4,828 36,720,161 13.15 2,740 24,466,277 11.20
12 Intangible fixed assets
Goodwill Toral
£'000
Cost
[ January 2004 30,791
Additions (see below) 30
Reduction in the fair value of deferred consideration (see below) (2173
3| December 2004 30,664
Amortisation
| January 2004 589
Charge for the year [.541
31 December 2004 2,130
Net book value
3| December 2004 28,534
3| December 2003 30,202

An impairment review of goodwill has been undertaken for each of the group’s subsidiarics, in accordance with FRS 10 - Goodwill and
intangible assets, and no provision for impairment is considered necessary.

The directors remain of the opinion that goodwill should be amortised over their estimate of the expected useful life, which is considered
to be 20 years from the date of each acquisition.

The additions in the year relate to additional consideration of £71,000 payable to the former sharcholders of Watermark Asia Limited {note
35} and under-cstimated professional costs of £19,00C in respect of the acquisiion of Air Fayre Limited in 2003.

The reduction in the fair value of deferred consideration payable for the acquisition of Globe Audic Limited arises as the company
considers that no further contingent consideration is due (note 35}

Watermark Group plc Annual Report and Accounts 2004




Notes to the accounts (continued)
for the year ended 3| December 2004

13 Tangible fixed assets

Plant and Fixtures Office Motor

(1) Group machinery and fittings equipment vehicles Total

£'000 £000 £000 £'000 £000
Cost
i January 2004 2,190 456 241 183 3070
Currency translation (14} (2) (8) - (24)
Additions 4010 5562 45 [ 9,628
Reclassification 86 (49) (37 - -
Disposals {141 - (60) {3) (204)
3| December 2004 6,131 5967 I8l 191 12,470
Depreciation
| January 2004 953 265 173 73 |.464
Currency transfation §10) (1 (5) - (7
Reclassification 63 (38) (27) - -
Charge for the year 347 108 28 31 514
Impairment 192 88 - - 280
Disposals (141} - (60) (3 (204)
3| December 2004 1406 422 108 101 2,037
Net book value
3| December 2004 4,725 5,545 73 90 10,423
31 December 2003 1,237 191 £8 1o 1,606

Included above are asscts subject to hire purchase agreements with a net book valuc at 31 December 2004 of £1.812475 (2003: £41,000),

Plant and
(2} Company machinery
£000
Cost
| January 2004 and 3| December 2004 28
Depreciation
| January 2004 and 31 December 2004 28

Net book vatue
3| December 2003 and 31 December 2004 .
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14 Investments

(1} Group Other
investments
£:000
Cost
| January 2004 336
Additions 11
Disposals (85)

31 December 2004 362

Amortisation

} January 2004 &
Charge for the period S0
Provision (sea below) 89
3| December 2004 145
Net book value

3| December 2004 217
31 December 2003 330

(2) Company

Other Subsidiary
investments undertakings Toral

£000 £000 £000
Cost
| January 2004 249 35391 35640
Additions 11 143 254
Reduction in the fair value of deferred consideration (note 12) - (217) (217
Disposals (85) - (85)
3| December 2004 275 35317 35,592
Provision for impairment in value
| January 2004 - 153 153
Provision (see below) 89 - 89
31 December 2004 89 153 242
Net book value
3| December 2004 186 35.164 35,350
31 December 2003 249 35238 35487

Included in other investments are investments listed on a recognised investment exchange with a cost of £234,000 (2003: £234,000), which
has been reduced by £8%9.000 to the market value of £145000 (2003: £851,000).

Included in other irvestments in 2003 were investments listad on a recognised investmant exchange at a cost of £15,000. [n 2004, 2 further
investment of £70.000 was made and the full investment was disposed of in July, resulting in a gain of £676,000, as shown below:

2004

£000

Proceeds on disposal .166
Less cost of investment (85)
Less legal and professional and other dispute resolution costs (405)
676
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Notes to the accounts (continued)
for the year ended 3| December 2004
14 Investments (continued)

{3) Principal group investments

As at 31 December 2004, the company owned 100% of the ordinary share capital of the following subsidiaries, all of which are included
within the consolidated financial statements:

Name of subsidiary undertaking Nature of business

Watermark Limited Provision of travel supplies and marketing services to the international travel sector
Watermark Americas Inc. Provision of travel supplies and marketing services to the international travel sector
Watcrmark Asia Limited Provision of travel supplies and marketing services to the international travel sector
Watermark South Africa (Pty) Limited Provision of travel supplies and marketing services to the international travel sector
M'm'H Recyding Limited Recycling and packing of airline cabin products

Media On The Move Limited Provision of ncwspapers and magazines to the international travel sector

Air Fayre Lirnited Pravision of catering and logistics services to the international travel sector
Watermark Asia Holdings Limited Provision of staff to Hong Kong based subsidiaries

Glorient In-Flight Sales Limited

Globe Audie Limited

Update International Limited

Update International Scrvices Limited

Encompass Supply Chain
Management Limited

Watermark Group Heldings Limited DORMANT

Airspace Outdoor Advertising Lirnited

Bigger Than Life (UK} Limited

Telecard Limited

Watermarl Travel Supplies Limited

Watermark.com Limited

Watermark Hong Kong Limited

Dhuring the year, the name of Watermark Asia Procurement Limited was changed to Update International Limited.

During the year, the trade of Glorient In-Flight Sales Limited was transferred to Watcrmark Asia Limited, and the trade of Globe Audic
Limited and Update Intermational Services Limited was transferred to Watermarle Limited.

As at 31 December 2004, all companies are owned directly by Watermark Group plc, except that:

a) the investrnent in Bigger Than Life (UK) Limited was held by Airspace Gutdoor Advertising Limited and

by the investment inWatermark Asi 1 Limited, Glorient In-Flight Sales Limited and Update International Lirited was held by Watermark Asia
Holdings Limited.

All supsidiaries are incorporated in England and Wales except:

Name of subsidiary undertaking Country of incorporation
Watermark Americas Inc. Dclaware, USA
Watcrmark Asia Holdings Limited Hong Kong
Watermark Asia Limited Hong Kong
Glorient In-Fiight Sales Limited Hong Kong
Watermark Hong Kong Limited Hong Kong
Update International Limited Hong Kong
Watermark South Africa (Pty) Limited South Africa
(4) Other investments Nature of business Investment
FlightSiore Group plc in-flight interactive media provider
and product retailer Current holding 7.7%
AcroTV Limited Provider of entertainment systems
to short-haul aireraft, buses and trains Current holding 16%

The group’s |6% investment in AeroTV Limited has not been treated as an associate undertaking as the company is controlled by the
majority shareholder; who holds the remaining 84% of the voting shares. Despite Watermark Group ple having a director on the beoard of
AeroTV Limited. in the opinion of the directors, the shareholding is such as to prevent the group from exercising significant influence over
its operations.
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I5 Stocks
Group Company
2004 2003 2004 2003
£'000 £000 £'000 £000
Goods for resale 4,096 3,381 - -
16 Debtors
Group Company
2004 2003 2004 2003
£'000 £000 £'000 £'000
Amounts falling due within one year
Trade debtors 15,569 13,497 - -
Amounts owed by subsidiary undertakings - - 3064 1,693
Other debtors 430 974 800 1,001
Prepayments and accrued income 4,300 3,684 226 IS
20,492 (8,157 4090 2,709
Amaunts falling due after more than one year
Trade debtors [y - -
20,611 18,157 4,090 2,709
|7 Creditors: amounts falling due within one year
Group Company
2004 2003 2004 2003
£000 £'000 £'000 £000
Bank loans and overdrafts 4962 5,394 3,246
Trade creditors 9,795 7491 - -
Amounts owed to subsidiary undertakings - - |74 4,663
Corporation taxation 118 1,945 76 70
Other taxes and social security costs 390 781 - -
Deferred cash consideration for acquisitions (note 35) 1,063 18,160 1,063 18,180
Other creditors 491 74 - .
Obligations under hire purchase agreemcnts 553 18 - -
Accruals and deferred incore 3,785 4213 - 1,173
Proposed dividend 841 675 841 675
22,998 39,351 5,400 24,741

The bank loans and overdrafts bear interest at 1.25% above LIBOR and % abeve the base rate respectively. The bank lcans and overdrafts
arc secured by an unlimited debenture, a charge over the group's trade debtors and an assignment of the proceeds of key man insurance
policics in respect of certain directors,

Obligations under hire purchase agreements are sccured by the related assets.
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Notes to the accounts (continued)
for the year ended 3| December 2004

18 Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year

Group Company
2004 2003 2004 2003
£'000 £'000 £'000 £000
Obligations under hire purchase agreements 1314 I - -
Bank loans - 1517 - -
Other creditors il - - -
Deferred cash consideration for acquisitions (note 35) 3,187 4,250 3,187 4,250
4612 5778 3,187 4,250
Borrowings
The borrowings are repayable as follows:
Group Company
2004 2003 2004 2003
£000 £'000 £'000 £000
Within one year 5515 6012 3.246
Between one and two years 1,088 526 -
Between two and five years 226 1,002 -
6,829 7.540 3,246 -
Otligations under hire purchasc agreements are secured by the related assets,
19 Provisions for liabilities and charges
Deferred
Taxation
£'000
At | January 2004 48
Provisions in the yoar 475
At 31 December 2004 523
20 Deferred taxation
2004 2003
Group £'000 £'000
Accelerated capital allowances 523 48
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21 Financial instruments

The financial review on pages four to seven provides an explanation of the role that financial instruments have had during the period in
creating or changing the risks which the group faces in its activities.

The explanation summarises the objectives and palicics for holding or issuing financial instruments and similar contracts, and the strategies
for achieving those objectives that have been followed during the period.

The numerical disclosures in this note deal with the financial assets and financial liabilities as defined in FRS [3 - Dervatves and other
financial instruments: Disclosures. Certain financial assets such as investments in subsidiary and asseciated companies are also excluded from
the scope of these disclosures.

As permitted by FRS 13, short term debtors and creditors have been excluded from the disclosures, other than the currency disclosures,
Interest rate profile

The profile of the group's interest-bearing financial assets and liabilities at 31 Decermnber 2004 and 2003 was as follows:
Floating rate

Currency 2004 2003

£'000 £'000
Sterling - assets 161 4,859
Sterling - borrowings (9.877) (7,142)
S dollar - assets 5447 [,651
US dollar - borrowings (455) (2723
Hong Kong dollar - assets 374 586
Hong Kong dollar - borrowings - (Sh
Euro - assets 209 3
Euro - borrowings (1222) {46)
South African rand - assets - 3
Auwstralian dollar - assets 4 -
Canadian dollar - assets 1915
Russian roubles - assets 305

(3,139) (409)

The financial assets comprise cash.

Under the terms of the overdraft facility, there is a right of sct off between certain sterling and foreign currency bakances with a net liability
value of £4,962,000 (2003: net asset of £2,574,000).

The floating rate assets and liabilities bear interest at rates which move in accordance with the bank base rate.
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Notes to the accounts (continued)
for the year ended 3| December 2004

21 Financial instruments (continued)
Currency exposures

The table below shows the group’s currency expesures, in ather wards, those transactional (or non-structural) exposures that give rise to
the net currency gains and losses recognised in the profit and loss account. Such exposures comprise the monetary assels and monetary
fiabilities of the group that are not denominated in the operating (or “functional} currency of the eperating unit involved, other than certain
non-sterling borrowings treated as hedges of net investments in overseas operations. As at 31 December 2004, these exposures were as

follows:
Net foreign currency
Hong
us Kong Canadian
Sterling Dollars Dollars Euros Dollars Other Total
£'000 £000 £'000 £'000 £000 £000 £000
2004
Functional currency
of group operation
Sterling - 1,620 - (i,109) 1515 - 2426
US Dollars 711 - (275) 72 - 126 534
7L 1,620 (275) (1,037) 1,915 126 3,060
2003

Functional currency
of group operation
Sterling - | - - - - |

The amounts shown in the tables above take into account the effect of any currency swaps, forward contracts and other derivatives entered
inta to manage these currency exposures. As at 31 December 2004, the group held open forward contracts of U5$10,500.000 (2003
US$8,704,204) taken out to hedge expectad profits on future foreign currency sales. These contracts expire evenly over 2005,

Maturity of financial liabilities

The maturity profile of the group's finandal liabilities other than short-term creditors is shown in note |8,

Borrowing facilities

The group had undrawn committed narrowing facilitios at 31 Decemnber 2004, in respect of which all conditions precedent had been met,

as follows:
2004 2003
£'000 £000
Expiring in one year or less 5.038 2,472
Fair values

The baok value of the group's financial instruments recognised in the financial statements approximates to their fair valuc.
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22 Called-up share capital

2004 2003
£000 £'000
Authorised
65,382,754 (2003: 39,325,030) ordinary shares of |p cach 654 393
Allotred, issued and fully paid
40,421,900 (2003: 24,880,32 1) ordinary shares of [p cach 404 24%

On 23 February 2004, the authorised share capital was increased to £653,827 by the creation of 26,057,724 ordinary shares of Ip cach. The
issued share capital was increased by the issue of 12,937,766 ordinary shares of |p cach by way of a share placing and open offer, raising
£20,053,537. The shares were issued for cash and the proceeds were used to fund the consideration for the acquisition of Air fayre Limited,

During the year, 1,068,265 ordinary shares of | p cach were allotted as a result of the exercise of share options, and 1,535,548 ordinary shares
of Ip cach were allotted under the terms of sale and purchase agreements for company acquisitions, for a total consideration of £776,245.

Contingent rights to the allorment of shares:
VWatermark Group plc executive share option scheme

At 21 December 2004, options to subscribe for 745,307 ordinary shares of 1p each had been granted, all exercisable between 3 and 10
years after the date they were granted, as follows:

Number of options

Exercisable after

Exercisable before

Exercise price

10,000 I3 June 1999 I3 June 2006 I5p
10,000 29 April 2000 29 April 2007 34p
10,000 5 May 2002 S May 2008 48p
20,000 25 May 2003 25 May 2009 40p
22,500 9 October 2003 9 October 2010 72p
117,882 & April 2004 & April 201 | 72p
130,000 3 Aprit 2005 3 April 2012 86.5p
30,000 24 October 2005 24 Octaber 2012 975p
152,043 I October 2006 | October 2013 1235p
242,882 8 April 2007 8 April 2014 | 78.5p

Watermark Group plc unapproved share option scheme

At 31 December 2004, options to subscribe for 2,230,334 ordinary shares of 1p each had been granted, exercisable within 7 years from the
date of grant {except notes | and 2 below), as follows:

Number of options

Date of grant

Exercisable before

Exercise price

10,000 i5 October 1999 15 October 2006 51.5p
25000 29 September 2000 29 September 2007 72p
219,000 29 March 2001 29 March 2008 T2p
815,000 (note | below) 27 September 2001 27 September 2008 53p
7.500 3 April 2002 3 April 2009 86.5p
100,000 2 May 2002 2 May 2009 106.5p
100,000 12 August 2002 [2 August 2009 102.5p
150,000 (note 2 below) | October 2002 | October 2009 [01.5p
50,000 25 September 2002 25 September 2009 945p
10,625 19 March 2003 19 March 2010 87p
50000 25 March 2003 25 March 2010 89.5p
588,209 29 January 2004 29 January 2011 178p
105,000 | April 2004 I April 201t | 78.5p

Note | 815,000 options granted at a price of 53p per share are exercisable within 3 to 7 years from the date of grant, provided the share
price has reached at least 140p per share at the third anniversary of the date of grant. This target was met.
Note 2 150,000 of the options granted at a price of 101.5p per share are exercisable at any time up te 7 years from the date of grant,

provided the share price has at least reached 225p per share,

Note 3 During the year, the group's share price ranged from 1265p to 195.5p and closed the year on 3| December 2004 at 156.5p. The
share price as at |5 April 2005 was 158.5p.
Note 4 Asat | January 2004 3,137,815 share options had been granted, During the year ended 3! December 2004, 966,061 further share
options were granted, 1,068,265 share options were exercised and 60,000 share opticns lapsed.

Wiatermark Group plc Annual Report and Accounts 2004




Notes to the accounts (continued)
for the year ended 3| December 2004

23

24

25

26

Share premium

Group and company £'000
| January 2004 599
Share options exercised 766
Deferred consideration shares issued 1,375

Issue of shares upon placing 20063

31 December 2004 22,803

Shares to be issued

Group and company £'000
| January 2004 8,172
Additicnal consideration payable 71

Deferred consideration shares issued (1,530}
Reduction in the fair value of deferred consideration (note |2) (217}
31 December 2004 6,496

Deferred consideration shares are contingent upon subsidiary undertakings achieving future profit targets. Provision has been made for
deferred consideration shares, based on the directors’ best estimate of the number of shares expected to be issued (note 35).

Reserves
Capiral Profit
redemption Merger and loss
reserve reserve account
£000 £000 £'000
(1) Group
1 January 2004 24 (527} 7.084
Retained profit for the financial year - - 1,237
Currency translation - 60
3| December 2004 24 {527} 8,381
(2) Company
| January 2004 24 - 679
Retained profit for the financial year - 447
3| December 2004 24 - 1.126

(3) Cumulative goodwill

Cumulative goodwill written off amounts to £2.281,301, of which £40.127 was written off against reserves in the year of acquisition and

£2.241,174 has been fully amortised through the profit and loss account.

Reconciliation of movements in equity share owners’ funds

2004 2003
Group £'000 £000
Profit for the financial year 2,122 2,380
Currency translation 50 (468)
Dividends (885) (678)
MNew shares issued and te be issucd 20,683 6918
Net addition to equity share owners' funds 21,980 8,152
Opening equity share owners’ funds 15,601 7,449
Closing equity share owners' funds 37,581 15,601
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27 Net cash inflow/(outflow) from operating activities

Operating Exceptional 2004 2003
profit items Total Total
£000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Operating profit 5125 - 5125 3367
Less oxceptional item (1.436) (143%) -
3689 3.367
Depreciation and amaortisation charges 2,105 280 2,385 785
(Increase)/decrease in stocks 818) - (816} 1,080
(increase)/decrease in debtors {2,993) 339 (2654 1,398
Increase/(decrease) in creditors 3,270 306 3576 {4297}
Net cash inflow from operating activities 6,691 (511 6,180 2,333
28 Analysis of cash flows
(1} Returns on investments and servicing of finance 2004 2003
£000 £'000
Interest received 64 28
Bank interest paid (484) (297)
Interast element of hire purchase payments {13 (3)
Cther interest (1) )
Net cash outflow (441) (276)
{2} Capital expenditure and financial investment 2004 2003
£000 £'000
Purchase of fixed asset investments (N (14
Purchase of tangible fixed assets (7.688) {428)
Sale of fixed asset investments 761 335
Sale of tangible fixed assets - 3
Net cash outflow (7.038) (104)
(3) Financing 2004 2003
£000 £'000
fssue of ordinary share capital 20,830 231
Receipts from bank borrowing - 1451
Repayment of bank borrowing (2.981) (168)
Capital element of hire purchase payments (102} {23)
Net cash inflow 17,747 1,191
{4) Acquisitions and disposals 2004 2003
£000 £'000
Cash consideration for acquisitions (18,160) (1,286)
Costs of acquisitions (1,148} {551
Cash acquired with acquisitions - 4,489
Net cash (outflow)/inflow (£9.308) 2,652
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Notes to the accounts (continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2004

29 Analysis and reconciliation of net debt

Capital
l element of new 310
January Currency  hire purchase December
2004 translation agreements Cash flow 2004
£'000 £'000 £000 £'000 £000
Cash at bank and in hand 7.102 (82) (5.197) 1823
Bank overdrafts (4.528) H4 (448) (4562}
Increase/(decrease) in cash for the year 2574 (48) (5.645) (3,139}
Banlk loans (2.983) 2 - 2981 -
Hire purchasc agrecments (29) - (1,940 102 {1,867}
Net debt (438) (66) {1,940) (2,562) (5.006)
2004 2003
£000 £000
{Decrease)/increase in cash in the year (5.645) 4783
Cash flow from moverment in bank loans 2,981 {983)
Cash flow from movement in hire purchase agreements 102 23
Change in net debt resulting from cash flows (2,562) 3823
Inception of hire purchase agreements (1.940) -
Currency translation (66) (93)
Acquisitions - (20)
Net debt as at 31 December 2003 {438) (4,148)
Net debt as at 3| December 2004 (5,006} (438)
30 Financial commitments
(1) Operating leases
At 31 December 2004, the group had annual commitments under non-cancellable operating lcases as follows:
Land and Land and
buildings Other buildings Other
2004 2004 2003 2003
Group £000 £'000 £000 £'000
Expiry date
- within one year - 8 543 19
- between one and two years - - 155 5
- between two and five years 200 |9 43 8
- after five years 584 - -
I.184 27 746 42

(2) Commitments on behalf of group undertakings

The company has guarantced the borrowings of its subsidiary undertakings. The borrowings are sccured on the assets of all group
undertakings. In addition, at 31 December 2004, the company has guaranteed the sum of £4.26 million (2003: £4.53 million). At 31 December

2004, net bank borrowings were £3.14 million (2003: £258 million assets),
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31 Related party transactions
The group purchased goods and services during the year from John Caulcutt and PVC Supplies (5t Albansy Limited, a company in which John
Caulcutt owns 100% of the issued share capital, at a cost of £73,000 {2003: nil), relating principally to rent and other services for the use of
the premiscs at Belmore Park. In addition, an acerual for £75.500, as determined by an independent surveyor, was included for dilzpidations

on the premises, payable on 31 December 2C05.

Maurice Ostro is a director of Air Fayre Limited and Media On The Move Limited. Prior to the acquisition of Air Fayre Limited and Media
On The Move Limited by Watermark Group ple in 2003, Maurice Ostro had a beneficial interest in these companics.

Maurice Ostro is one of the potential beneficiaries of The Max Ostro Children's Trust, which held an interest in the shares of Air Fayre Limited
at 31 Decernber 2003, On 23 February 2004, these shares were acquired by Watermark Group ple.

There were no other related party transactions that require disclosurce under FRS 8 - Related party disciosures.
The company has taken advantage of the exemnption within FRS 8 not to disclose transactions with other group companies which have been
eliminated on consclidation.

32 Employees

The average monthly number of persons (including directors) employed by the group during the year was:

2004 2003
Number Number
Sales and distribution 267 |36
Management and administration 87 25
354 161

Their employment costs were:
2004 2003
£000 £'000
Wages and salaries 0,668 4,132
Social security costs 746 295
Pension costs 155 93
11,569 4,525

Included in wages and salarics are payments to agency staff totalling £2.893,829 (2003: £279,059).

33 Pensions

The group operates defined contribution pension schemes for the benefit of the employees. Toe assets of the schemes are administered by
trustees in funds independent from trose of the group.

The pensions cost charge for the year was £154.816 (2003; £98,325).

34 Capital commitments

The group had capital commitments of £190,700 in respect of the purchase of capital equipment at 31 Decernber 2004 (2003: £310,000).
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Notes to the accounts (continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2004

35

36

Deferred contingent consideration payable for the acquisition of subsidiaries

The deferred consideration payable in respect of M'n'H Recydling Limited, Media On The Move Limited and Air Fayre Limited is contingent
upon these companies achieving future profit targets, and will be satisfied by a combination of cash and the issue of shares in Watermark
Group plc. The deferred consideration becomes payable once the audit is completed for each year

The maximum dcferred consideration recognised at 31 December 2004, as shown in the note below, is the directors’ best estimate of the
amount which remains payable, assuming that a 30% growth in annual profits is achieved by each of the companies. This amount is the
maximum payable under each sale and purchase agreement and is considered attainable by reference to the results achicved by each
company to date.

Media Air M'n'H Globe Watermarl
On The Move Fayre Recycling Audio Asia
Limited Limited Limited Limited Limited Total
£000 £000 £000 £'000 £'000 £'00¢
Deferred share consideration (note 24}
Balance brought forward 1,875 4390 1,269 217 421 8172
Additional consideration payable - - - - 71 71
issued in the year (625) {140y 273 (492) (1,530
Reduction in the fair value
of deferred consideration - - - (217) - (217
Balance carried forward:
Payable within one year 625 1.063 272 - - 1,960
Payable after more than one year 625 3,187 724 - - 4536
Shares to be issued 1,250 4,250 996 - - 6,496
Deferred cash consideration {note |7 and 18)
Balance brought forward 1,000 21410 - - - 22410
Paid in the year {1,.000) {17,160} - - - {18,160
Balance carried forward:
Within one year - 1063 - - - 1,063
After more than one year - 3,187 - - - 3187
- 4,250 - - - 4,250

Total deferred consideration payable 1,250 8,500 996 - - 10,746

In addition to the amount recognised, further deferred consideration may become payable in accordance with the sale and purchase
agreements, as follows:

I, Under the terms of the agreement for the purchase of Media On the Move Limited, in addition to the deferred consideration reflected
above, additional bonus shares issued at the share price applicable at the time of issue become payable if these profit targets are
exceeded, up to a maximum valuc of £1.75 million.

2. Under the terms of the agreement for the purchase of Air Fayre Limited, in addition to the deferred consideration reflected zbove,
additioral bonus sharcs become payable if these profit targets are exceeded. There is no limit to the levet of profits upon which bonus
shares become payable. Air Fayre Limited has exceeded its profit targets in 2004 and a maximum amount of un-provided deferred
consideration of £799,000 may become payable in April 2005. This armount is payable in shares issued at the share price applicable at the
time of issue, and is contingent upon the former shareholders of Air Fayre Limited electing to receive or further defer their entitlernent
at this time.

3. Under the terms of the sale and purchase agreement for the acquisition of Update International Limited {now Waterrnark Asia Limited),
further consideration in the sum of £71.000 was paid during the year in additional shares issued at the share price at the date of issue.

4, Under the terms of the sale and purchase agreement for the acquisition of Globe Audio Limited, ne further deferred consideration 13
payable.

Contingent liabilities
The directors are not awarc that the group had ary contingent liabilitics as at 31 December 2004 or 2003, except that the company has

guaranteed the annual fcasc commitments of £984,000 of Air Fayre Limited on the Heathrow premises for a minimum of three years from
commencement of the lease.
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Share owners’ service

Share price

The company's share price is broadcast on BBC| Ceefax page 233 (page 1/4) and on Channel 4 Teletext page 576 (page 14/17) as well as
appearing in the Financial Times, Daily Telegraph and the London Evening Standard.

Investor communications initiative

For all the latest news and information on Watermark Group pic, register at www.hemscott.com

Payment of dividends

The bast way to ensure that dividends are received as quickly as possible is to instruct our registrars, whose address is given above, to pay them
directly into your bank account; tax vouchers are then posted to you separately. This method also avoids the risk of the
dividend cheques being delayed or lost in the post.

Voting on the Web

We have organised an electronic facility for share owners to record their proxy vote for our Annual General Mecting. Share owners will be sent
their own unique company code, stock code, card 1D and password on the proxy card which they will receive with the notice of the Annual

General Meeting. To lodge your vote electronically, you need to go to www.capitaregistrars.com and sclect the shareholder services pages,

Share owner enquiries

All administrative enquirics relating to shareholdings, such as queries concerning dividend paymants, notification of change of address or the loss
of a share certificate. should be made to our registrars by telephone on 0870 162 3131 or in writing to the address given above. Capita also
operate a web-bascd crquiry service; please visit www.capitaregistrars.com where you can view your shareholding and sec a range
of useful information.
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